ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 10, 2017
1:30 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator David WIson, Chair

Senat or Nat asha von | nmhof, Vice Chair
Senat or Cathy G essel

Senator Peter M cciche

Senat or Tom Begi ch

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 20
"An Act classifying U 47700 as a schedule |IA <controlled
substance; and providing for an effective date.”

- MOVED CSSB 20(HSS) OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 32

“"An Act relating to biological products; relating to the
practice of pharmacy; relating to the Board of Pharmacy; and
providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 20

SHORT TI TLE: LI ST U- 47700 AS A CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) MEYER

01/ 18/ 17 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 18/ 17 (S) HSS, JUD

02/ 08/ 17 (S) HSS AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 08/ 17 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 08/ 17 (S) M NUTE( HSS)

02/ 10/ 17 (S) HSS AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -1- February 10, 2017



BILL: SB 32
SHORT TI TLE: PRESCRI PTI ONS FOR Bl OLOG CAL PRODUCTS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) HUGHES

01/ 23/ 17 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 23/ 17 (S) HSS, L&C
02/ 10/ 17 (S) HSS AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

CHRI STI NE MARASI GAN, St aff

Senat or Kevi n Meyer

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ained the CS for SB 20 on behalf of the
sponsor.

SENATOR KEVI N MEYER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 20.

SENATOR SHELLEY HUGHES

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 32.

Al MEE BUSHNELL, Staff

SENATOR SHELLEY HUGHES

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided an overview and sectional analysis
of SB 32 on behalf of the sponsor.

RYLAN HANKS, Director

A obal R&D and Regul atory Policy

Anmgen | ncor por at ed

Los Angeles, California

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 32.

DR. DAVI D CHARLES, Chair

Al liance for Patient Access

Nashvil | e, Tennessee

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 32.

DR PHI LI P SCHNEI DER, Chair
Advi sory Board

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 2- February 10, 2017



Al liance for Safe Biologic Medicines
Phoeni x, Arizona
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 32.

MARK GUI MOND

Director of State Legislative Affairs

Arthritis Foundation

Washi ngton, D.C.

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 32.

GARY MCCLELLAND

Pati ent Advocate

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 32.

ROBERT THOMS, representing hinself
Wasi |l a, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 32.

Cl NDY CASERTA, representing herself
Wasill a, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 32.

ASHLYN ANTONELLI, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 32.

EM LY NENON, Al aska Governnment Rel ations Director
Ameri can Cancer Society Cancer Action Network
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 32.

DR. BARRY CHRI STENSEN, Co-Chair

Al aska Phar maci st Associ ation

Ket chi kan, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified that the Al aska Pharmaci st
Association is neutral on SB 32.

LI S HOUCHEN, Chair

Nat i onal Associ ation of Chain Drugstores

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified that the National Association of
Chain Drugstores is neutral on SB 32 if notification were
changed fromthree-busi ness days to five-busi ness days.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 3- February 10, 2017



1: 30:19 PM

CHAIR DAVID WLSON called the Senate Health and Social Services
Standing Committee neeting to order at 1:30 p.m Present at the
call to order were Senators G essel, Begich, von Inhof, and
Chair W1 son.

SB 20-LI ST U-47700 AS A CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE

1: 30: 48 PM
CHAI R W LSON announced the consideration of SB 20. He noted the
proposed conm ttee substitute (CS), 30-LS0319\D.

1:31:19 PM
SENATOR VON | VHOF noved to adopt the work draft CS for SB 20,
version 30-LS0319\D, as the working docunent.

CHAIR W LSON asked if there was an objection to adopting the CS
SENATOR VON | MHOF obj ected for di scussion purposes.

1:32:07 PM
SENATOR M CCI CHE joined the commttee neeting.

1:32:16 PM

CHRI STI NE MARASI GAN, Staff, Senator Kevin Myer, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, Juneau, Al aska, explained the CS for SB 20 as
foll ows:

Page 4, line 30:
M sspelling corrected, adding a
was brought up by Dr. Butler

z" in the word that

Page 4, line 31:
There's a new Section 2, this new section continues on

page 5, lines 1-6 which basically inserts the |anguage
to have tranmadol be Schedule IVA controlled substance
thus bringing Al aska statute in line with what has

al ready happened on the national |evel of tranadol.
CHAIR W LSON asked if the objection to the CS is nuaintained.

1:33: 05 PM
SENATOR VON | MHOF renoved her objection.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -4- February 10, 2017



CHAI R WLSON announced that w thout objection, the CS for SB 20,
version D, is adopted by the commttee.

SENATOR M CClI CHE asked to comment prior to noving the bill out
of conmttee. He stated that the things that he has been | ooking
at to try and present nore of a catch-all noving forward needs

nore work. He asserted that the bill definitely inproves the
situation and he is very supportive. He said he will be getting
with those that are experts, including [Senator Gessel], to

wor k on recommendati ons goi ng forward.

CHAIR WLSON stated that he appreciated Senator Mcciche's
comrent and noted that all commttee nenbers would like a nore
in-depth solution to the nmatter that plagues the state's
comruni ti es.

SENATOR KEVIN MEYER, Alaska State Legislature, Juneau, Al aska,
Sponsor of SB 20. Conmented as foll ows:

| certainly agree with Senator Mcciche and | think we
had a really good discussion on this topic and how we
need to cone up with a system so that we can react
qui cker, faster, be a little nore ninble than waiting
for us to cone into session and go through the process
of passing a law, although, we are creating a new | aw
with a pretty severe crinme. So, | think it does
deserve a deliberative process, but | would agree |
think Senator G essel and her opioid task force m ght
be a good place to start the discussion or this
conmttee and we are certainly very supportive and
want to help in any way we can, but at |least what this
will do now is get this particular bill or this
particular drug which we know is currently a serious
problem unlawful and against the law, so that the
police force can now start inplenenting appropriate
penal ti es.

CHAI R W LSON disclosed that the plan in future weeks is to have
the Statew de Drug Enforcenent Unit and the Al aska Opioid Policy
Task Force present options before the conmttee to solve the
probl em that SB 20 addresses.

SENATOR MEYER t hanked Chair W/ son.

CHAIR WLSON asked if there is any objection to Senator von
| mhof's notion to nove SB 20.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 5- February 10, 2017



1:35:29 PM

SENATOR VON | VHOF noved to report the CS for SB 20, version D
from commttee wth individual recomendations and attached
fiscal note(s).

1: 35: 39 PM
CHAIR WLSON announced that seeing no objection, CSSB 20(HSS)
noved from the Senate Health and Social Services Standing
Commi ttee.

1:35:48 PM
At ease.
SB 32- PRESCRI PTI ONS FOR Bl OLOG CAL PRODUCTS
1:37:36 PM
CHAI R W LSON announced the consideration of SB 32.
1:38: 05 PM
SENATOR SHELLEY HUGHES, Alaska State Legislature, Juneau
Al aska, sponsor of SB 32, set forth that the bill wll provide

Al askans wth safe access to new US. Food and Drug
Adm ni stration ( FDA) approved t r eat ment opti ons cal | ed,
"i nt erchangeabl e bi ol ogi cal products.” She detailed as foll ows:

Under current state |law pharmacists can prescribe
| oner-cost generic drugs for the prescribed drug, but
currently there's absolutely no provision pertaining
to bi ol ogi c nedicines.

The urgency of this bill is twofold:

1. Ri ght now a phar maci st coul d technically
substitute a biosimlar for a biologic product
and not be in violation of state |aw because we
don't have anything preventing that.

2. Wthin a year the FDA will begin to be approving
i nt er changeabl e bi ol ogi ¢ products.

W' ve had biologic products around for years, Humira
is one that is used for arthritis as an exanple; but,
now bei ng devel oped are the biosimlars and there also
are a nunber of those on the market which a doctor can
now prescri be and a pharmaci st can di spense in Al aska.
What we are talking about is a new category of
i nt er changeabl e bi osi m | ars.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 6- February 10, 2017



A generic drug is chemcally based and so it can be
reproduced identically, the chemstry, the cellular
structure. A biological product is different, it 1is
made froma |iving organi sm and so biosinlar does not
have an absolutely identical structure to the original
bi ol ogi cal products. So, a biosimlar is going to be
as the word indicates, "simlar, but not absolutely
identical;" however, the new category that FDA is
wor ki ng on, the interchangeable, the goal will be that
it will be extrenely simlar so that if a substitute
were dispensed, it would be expected that there would
not be the adverse reactions of something that is
quite different.

SENATOR HUGHES set forth that SB 32 would be very good for
Al aska in reference to the state's Medicaid budget. She reveal ed
that all of the states that have passed legislation simlar to
SB 32 have indicated savings expectations for Medicaid as well
as famly budgets. She noted that M ssouri has "gone out on the

[ nmb" regar di ng i nt er changeabl e bi ol ogi cal product s and
projected an overall savings between federal and state Medicaid
budgets of over $100 million. She conceded that Alaska wll not

see simlar savings due to the state's smaller population, but
asserted that every dollar counts at this point in Al aska.

1:42: 23 PM

Al MEE BUSHNELL, Staff, Senator Shelley Hughes, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, Juneau, Al aska, provided an introductory statenment
on SB 32 as foll ows:

SB 32 follows nodel-consensus | anguage that has been
wor ked on extensively and agreed by nunerous patient-
advocacy groups, along wth prescriber-association
groups and pharmaci sts throughout the country; nost of

t hese specialty or gani zati ons and pati ent
organi zations use biologics primarily in treating
specialty and serious condi tions like cancer,

rheumatoid arthritis, multiple sclerosis (M5, and
other neurological disorders. There also has been
signi ficant outreach and discussion wth Al aska
st akehol ders for nonths, some of which may be
testifying today.

She explained that to allow access to interchangeabl e biol ogics

with the necessary agreed upon safety provisions, SB 32 provides
t he foll ow ng:

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -7- February 10, 2017



1. Defines the relevant terns of "biological product, "
"interchangeabl e biol ogi cal product, " consi st ent W th
federal |aw

2. Limts substitution of biologics to only those biosinmlars
approved as interchangeabl e by the FDA

3. Preserves t he ability for prescri ber to prevent
substitution and allows prescribers to wite, "D spense as
witten" to keep the patient taking what they believe is in
their best interest.

4. Requires the pharnmacists to naintain conmmunication with the
prescriber of the specific drug dispensed by electronic
neans if accessible and if not, by phone, fax or prevailing
nmeans and to maintain a record; so it won't be to just the

pharmaci st's discretion, there is also comunication
i nvol ved between the prescriber, the pharnmacist and the
patient.

1:44:25 PM

M5. BUSHNELL proceeded with a sectional analysis of SB 32 as
fol |l ows:

Sec. 1 — AS 08. 80. 030:

Adds a new subsection requiring the Board of Pharmacy
to have a link on the board s website to the FDA's
list of approved interchangeabl e biol ogi cal products.

Sec. 2 — AS 08. 80. 294:

Amends this section by requiring a pharmacist to
i nclude on the | abel of a biological product container
the proprietary or proper nane of the biological
product; this section also includes |anguage to
differentiate between drugs that are and are not
bi ol ogi cal products to ensure that statutes regarding
equi val ent generic  drugs are not subst antivel y
changed.

Sec. 3 — AS 08. 80. 294:

Adds a new subsection to define the term “proper nane”
bei ng t he name t hat reflects scientific
characteristics of a biological product; this new
subsection also defines “proprietary nane” which is
the trademarked and registered nane of the product.

Sec. 4 — AS 08. 80. 295:

Adds | anguage to differentiate between equival ent drug
products and interchangeabl e biological products, it
prevents substitution if the prescriber indicates

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 8- February 10, 2017



"Dispense only as witten;" this is simlar to what
has already been in law for generic chem cal drugs.
Also provides that a pharmacist who substitutes a
biologic in conpliance with this section in |aw incurs
no greater liability than what is incurred in filling
the original prescription, also simlar to what is
already in law for generic chem cal drugs.

Sec. 5 — AS 08. 80. 295:
Adds new subsections to provide guidelines as to how

pharmaci sts or their designee wll need to comunicate
with a prescribing doctor when dispensing a biol ogical
or i nt er changeabl e bi ol ogi cal pr oduct i f an

i nt erchangeabl e product is avail abl e.

Under subsection (c), a pharmacist nust comunicate to
the prescribing doctor the nanme and manufacturer of
t he biological product provided to the patient; this
communi cation nust happen wthin three days after
di spensing the product by an entry through an
interoperable electronic medical records system an
el ectronic prescribing technol ogy, a pharmacy benefit
managenent system or a pharmacy record. If an entry
under this subsection is not possible, the pharnacist
may conmunicate by e-mail, telephone, fax, or by any
ot her prevailing nmeans.

Under subsection (d) provides an exception to the
comuni cation requirenent under (c) if the dispensed
bi ol ogi cal product is a refill of the prescription and
is the sanme biological pr oduct . Subsection (e)
provi des that comunication provided under (c)(1l) of
this section is providing notice to the prescribing
doctor. Under subsection (f), a pharmacist is required
to maintain a record for two years after a biologica
product is dispensed. Finally subsection (g) defines
“desi gnee” as an agent or enployee of a pharnaci st who
has been authorized to comunicate information under
subsection (c).

Sec. 6 — AS 08. 80.480(34):

Changes | anguage and gives option to change the term
“drug” and *“equivalent drug” to “biological product”
and “int erchangeabl e bi ol ogi cal product”.

Sec. 7 AS 08. 80. 480:

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 9- February 10, 2017



Adds new subsection (37) to define term “biol ogical
product”.

Adds new subsecti on (36) to defi ne term
“i nterchangeabl e biological product” as a biological
product as determned by the United States Food and
Drug Adm ni stration.

Under subsection (A) provides that it neets the
standard for i nterchangeability under u. S code
(Regul ation of biological products, Safety standards
for determ ning interchangeability).

Under subsection (B) provi des t hat it IS
t herapeutically equivalent in the nost recent edition
of the United States Food and Drug Adm nistration
eval uati ons.

Sec. 8 AS 08. 80.480:

Amends this section by adding transition regul ations
if necessary to inplenent changes nmade by this Act.
Havi ng changes take place in accordance with AS 44.62
(Adm ni strative Procedure Act) but not before the
effective date of this Act.

Sec. 9 AS 08. 80. 480:
Adds | anguage that section 8 of this Act takes effect
July 1, 2017.

Sec. 10 AS 08. 80. 480:
Adds | anguage that this Act wll take effect January
1, 2018, except for a provided in section 9.

1:46: 08 PM

SENATOR VON | MVHOF asked if physicians will be able to check a
box on their prescription pads that says, "No biosimlar
substitutions.” She stated that she believed physicians
currently have a check- box t hat says, " No generic

substitutions."”

SENATOR HUGHES expl ained that prescription pads are different.
She suggested that [Senator Gessel] could possibly provide
i nput on prescription pads. She said her understanding is that
sonme prescribers can check-off or wite, "D spense as witten."
She added that a prescriber considering an interchangeable
biologic may also wite, "Call if the substitute is avail able”

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -10- February 10, 2017



and that way the prescriber will know exactly what the patient
woul d or woul d not be taking.

SENATOR VON | VHOF noted that something simlar has passed in 26
states already. She said sonetines there are questions from
doctors on being notified within a certain tinme frane. She asked
how many days the notification period is.

SENATOR HUGHES disclosed that the topic Senator von | mhof
addressed involved a lot of groups and has been thoroughly
debated and vetted. She revealed that the notification topic was
initially a tug-of-war because pharmacists preferred to be able
to just substitute like they do with the generics and they don't
want to have to make a request or to even notify; on the other
hand, the prescribers often wanted to make sure that a request
cane in first. She added that the patient wants their nedicine
as soon as possible, but a tinely response from a prescriber is
very unlikely. She reiterated that bearing in mnd the patient's
needs, prescribers can indicate, "D spense as witten" and al so
add, "Call if a substitute 1is available." She said the
prescription-pad notations seened to be the consensus | anguage
across the nation that seens to work and addresses the needs of
busy pharmacists, patients who need their nedicine right away,
and prescribers who want to nmake sure they know what their
patients are taking.

1:49:19 PM

CHAIR WLSON inquired if Senator Hughes knew what percentage of
doctors actually wite, "As prescribed"” for their prescriptions.
He noted that he 1is concerned about adverse effects for
substituting nedications for biologicals. He added that many
doctors may not know about the side effects of substituting
medi cations for biological drugs.

SENATOR HUGHES replied that once the FDA begins to put nedicines
in the new category of "interchangeable,” the nedicines wll be
extrenely simlar. She noted that as testing continues, the
intent is to nake sure biologicals are simlar to a generic with
no problens. She asserted that the drug manufacturers do not
want problens and will be nonitoring for adverse reactions.

She pointed out that the nunber of prescribers will tend to be
specialists involved with chronic diseases such as arthritis and
| upus. She asserted that the specialists wll be aware that
bi ol ogi cal s are avail able and nore affordable for patients.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -11- February 10, 2017



SENATOR HUGHES conmunicated that biol ogical products were
currently not inexpensive and asserted that SB 32 is needed for
pharmaci sts to stock biologicals in order to be ready for

prescriptions, otherwi se pharmacists will not make biologicals
avai l abl e and Al askans will mss out on the opportunity. She set
forth that biological products are going to be a safe and
affordable option upon FDA approval. She conceded that
bi ol ogi cal products are a new concept that will require a bit of
educati on.

She noted that generics are accepted because they are chemcally
i dentical; however, there is confusion that a biological product
like Humra will be substituted with a biosimlar. She pointed
out t hat a biosimlar has not been approved to be
i nt erchangeabl e and that was another reason why SB 32 is needed
because currently a pharmacist could interchange a biosimlar
and that would not be a violation of state |law and the patient
coul d have an adverse effect.

She summarized that SB 32 is inportant to nmake sure that
substituting occurs with the interchangeable biosimlars and
that the practice is in law. She set forth that SB 32 is needed
now rather than |ater because biosimlars are expected within
six nmonths to a year.

1:52:41 PM

SENATOR BEG CH revealed that all of the information he has
recei ved regarding interchangeabl e biological products has been
very positive. He asked if there has been any organized
opposition from Alaska or any of the states that have been
revi ewed.

SENATOR HUGHES replied that she is not aware of organized
opposition. He disclosed that there have been sone prescribers
that have been concerned. She reiterated that there has been a
t ug- of - war between prescribers and pharmacists regarding
notification. She added that the bill applies to an FDA
i nterchangeable that should not cause the reactions that
patients m ght be concerned about.

CHAI R WLSON pointed out that nost of the biological nedications
are not stocked on pharmacy shelves and the mpjority are mail
ordered. He noted that nost people he knows that get their
biologics directly through their doctor's office do so wthout
having to go to a pharnacy. He asked how dealing directly with
doctors inpacts nail-order purchases.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -12- February 10, 2017



SENATOR HUGHES reveal ed that the Al aska Pharnmaci sts Associ ation
a nedical doctor and a pharnmacist from the College of Pharmacy
in Arizona are avail able to answer Chair WIson's question.

1:55:43 PM
CHAI R W LSON opened public testinony on SB 32.

1:56: 28 PM

RYLAN HANKS, Director, dobal R& and Regul atory Policy, Angen
| ncorporated, Los Angeles, California, testified in support of
SB 32. He explained that Amgen is a manufacturer of both
i nnovative biologic nedicines and has |everaged their 35 years
of experience to start naking biosimlar nedications. He said
Angen sees the value in the inportance of biosimlar nedication
to its patients.

He noted that generic drugs provide a bit of a conceptual
overvi ew or f ramewor k about t oday' s biosimlars and
i nt erchangeabl e biologics, but noted that there is a difference.
He detailed that biologics are much nore conplex in size and
structure than traditional chemcal drugs; i.e. small tablet-
based pills. He revealed that the size difference is quite
i mense, on the order of 800 to 1,000 tines larger than a
chem cal drug. He added that biologics are largely protein-based
products that are nuch nore conplex than traditional medicines.
He pointed out that biologics and biosimlars wll be things
that are highly simlar, but not exactly the sane as referred to
earlier. He enphasized that biologics and biosimlars are
products that have been rigorously tested by the FDA

He disclosed that biologics, biosimlars and interchangeable
biologics are granted authority to the FDA to approve. He
explained that there are two standards to neet: biosimlar and
i nterchangeable biologic. He specified that biosimlar neets a
certain standard which neans it can be used in practice and does
not cause any clinical effect or adverse problens to a patient,
and it should be in a "good standard."

He specified that an interchangeable biologic nust neet a
biosimlar standard with no clinical differences, including
| ooking at switching back and forth between the original product
and the proposed interchangeable product. He added that the
i nt erchangeable biologic nust also show no significant
differences in safety or efficacy.

He set forth that when an interchangeable biologic is approved,
the product wll have been vetted significantly wth an

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -13- February 10, 2017



understanding that the FDA' s process also addressed swtching
back-and-forth and safety when the products conme to market.

1:59: 52 PM

VR. HANKS sunmarized that biosimlars and interchangeable
biologics are going to be highly inportant nedicines for
patients by providing additional access for affordable and cost
saving nedicines for Alaskan patients. He opined that SB 32 is
truly a patient-first bill that will inprove patients' lives for
very serious and chronic medical conditions.

SENATOR MCCICHE asked if Angen produces biologics and
bi osi m | ars.

MR. HANKS answer ed yes.

SENATOR MCCICHE said he referenced data that says no two
bi ol ogi cs are exactly the sane, just as no two finger prints are
exactly the same. He asked if different batches of Angen's
bi ol ogi cs are al so not the sane.

2:01: 06 PM

MR. HANKS answered that the biologics' batches can have slight
variability, but manufacturers' batch-to-batch production of a
bi ol ogi ¢ nedi ci ne have specific controls in place to manufacture
within a tight spectrum He added that the biologics are
rigorously tested, have additional scientific criteria, and
noted their long history with manufacturing the sanme product. He
admtted that a slight variation can happen, but the variation
is within a very tight and narrow wi ndow, so it does not cause
an effect. He reiterated that the FDA reviews biologics' for
causing changes. He detailed that biosimlars are a significant
kind of developnment based on a novel product that takes the
original product and a biosimlar process is created from
scratch to nmake new biosimlars, so each batch is a little bit
di stinct.

2:02: 04 PM

SENATOR M CCICHE referenced a Rand Corporation prediction that
bi osim | ar savings between 2014 and 2024 will be $44.2 billion

He cited an Express Scripts estimation that potential savings
between 2014 and 2014 wll be $250 billion, a 500 percent
difference from the Rand prediction. He asked why there are
savings when the process sounds the same. He inquired if the
biosim | ar process is as rigorous.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -14- February 10, 2017



MR. HANKS explained that the FDA looks at biosinmlars as a
product that already has an established and efficacious
reference product. He specified that biosimlars have to neet a
standard of conparable safety and efficacy where new safe and
efficacious standards do not have to be established. He
summari zed that cost savings are realized from the biosimlars
devel opnent process.

SENATOR VON | MHOF asked what the benefits are from swtching
back and forth, other than cost.

MR. HANKS replied that switching back and forth w Il provide
sonme flexibility for physicians when nedication options are
considered. He reiterated that biosimlars' profiles will not be
exactly the sane and prescribers will be able to establish the
best product fromnultiple options.

2:04: 23 PM

SENATOR VON | MHOF renmarked that genetic research w il allow
medi cations to be fine-tuned for the person. She asked what can
happen in three days between the time that the pharnmacist
di spenses an interchangeable biologic and the tinme that the
doctor is notified.

MR. HANKS admitted that he is not an expert on imrunogenicity;
however, he disclosed that Angen does not predict an inmune
response froma patient in a short period of tinme. He said Angen
does not expect to see concerns, issues or adverse events that
happen quickly after a patient noves from one biologic product
to interchangeabl e biologic products. He explained that Angen's
expectations are based on the extensive research done on noving
back and forth between products. He pointed out t hat
communi cation and updating patients' nedical records are key.

SENATOR BEA CH asked if any projections were done for the
potential savings in Alaska that m ght occur fromthe change.

MR. HANKS replied not to his know edge.

2: 06: 32 PM

SENATOR d ESSEL asked when M. Hanks anticipates the FDA will
approve the interchangeabl e bi ol ogi cs.

MR. HANKS answered that he could not provide a specific tine,
but noted that he expects interchangeables in the near future.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 15- February 10, 2017



SENATOR G ESSEL asked why rush SB 32 if FDA approval is not
known. She inquired why speeding up the FDA approval process
would be considered when the diseases and nedications are
conpl ex.

2:08: 06 PM

MR. HANKS explained that the rationale behind introducing
legislation at the current tinme is to clarify interchangeable
bi ol ogi c use and to make clear what a simlar should not be used
as. He opined that the wurgency is based on the fact that
biosimlars are comng to the market and being used by patients.
He said there needs to be clearly defined rules on appropriate
use of interchangeabl e bi ol ogi ¢ products.

He asked that Senator G essel clarify her questions pertaining
to speeding up the approval process.

SENATOR G ESSEL replied that when the FDA will provide approva
is not known. She asked why not wait for FDA approval. She
poi nted out that approval could take two years.

MR. HANKS reiterated that interchangeables are comng with the
need to clarify and provide rules around how to use biosimlars.
He pointed out that Alaska has nothing in state law in the
Phar macy Practice  Act about ei t her bi osim | ar or an
i nterchangeable. He noted that Senator Hughes discussed the
possi ble inpact if a pharnaci st does not have clear ideas about
how to use either of the two products. He added that multiple
biosimlars are currently under FDA review and a robust increase
could occur during the current year.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked Chair WIlson if the Board of Pharmacy will
be avail able to address questions fromthe commttee.

CHAIR WLSON replied that he did not see a representative from
the Board of Pharmacy. He suggested that questions could be
asked for follow up if the board coul d present.

2:10: 53 PM

DR. DAVI D CHARLES, Chai r, Al'liance for Patient Access,
Nashvill e, Tennessee, testified in support of SB 32. He detailed
that AFPA is a national organization consisting of several
hundred physician nenbers across various specialties including
urol ogy, rheumatol ogy, dermatol ogy, oncology, and so forth. He
noted that many of the nenber specialists use biologics. He
added that he is a neurologist and wuses biologics in his
practi ce.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -16- February 10, 2017



DR. CHARLES stated that biologics are revolutionizing the care
of people with a host of conditions including cancer, arthritis,
i nflammatory bowel disease, and nultiple sclerosis. He said
bi ol ogics are phenonenal and provide treatments that were not
avai | abl e before.

He declared that he endorsed SB 32 and remarked that the
provisions in the bill are excellent. He agreed that there is
sonme back-and-forth between physicians and pharnmaci sts about the
medi cati on and how substitutions will be handl ed.

He explained that the FDA is addressing two types of
biosim| ars: regul ar biosimlars and i nt er changeabl e
biosimlars. He specified that for the pharmacist to be able to
substitute there are really only those that are interchangeabl e.
He opined that many physicians my be confortable with the
pharmacy doing the change with interchangeable biosimlars. He
remarked that SB 32 got it right because the bill keeps the
ability of the physician to wite, "Dispense as witten."

He stated that SB 32 struck the right balance in notification

He added that communication is key between the pharmacists and
prescri bers. He opined that AFPA nenbers would agree with a
timely notification within 72 hours to update patient records
and noted that SB 32 says 3 days. He noted that bills across the
U S. are striking the balance of conprom se between physicians
and pharmacists. He added that he agreed with including the,
"Dispense as witten" part if there was a concern by a physician
when nedi cally necessary.

2:16: 43 PM

DR. PHI LIP SCHNEI DER, Chair, Advisory Board, Alliance for Safe
Bi ologic Medicines (ASBM, Phoeni x, Arizona, testified in
support of SB 32. He detailed that that ASBM is a group of
patients, physicians, pharmacists and manufacturers working
towards the safe introduction and wuse of biosimlars. He
asserted that biologic nedicines have hel ped patients with sone
of the serious chronic conditions |ike cancer, inmune disorder
arthritis, diabetes, Crohn's disease, and nmultiple sclerosis
(M5); copies of these nedicines called biosimlars are becom ng
available in the US. and they have the potential for new
t herapeutic options for patients at | ower costs.

He specified that wunlike generic versions of sinple chem cal

drugs, biosimlars are not exact duplicates of the reference
product. He pointed out that due to the conplexity of the

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -17- February 10, 2017



biologics in the proprietary mnufacturing process, they are
viewed as copies and can only be simlar and never the sane. He
di sclosed that the smallest structural difference between the
biologic and its biosinmlar can have a significant inpact on
patients. He disclosed that regulators, including the FDA and
the World Health Organi zati on, have nmade "nam ng" to distinguish
products a priority in order to nmke inadvertent substitution
less likely. He set forth that with biosimlars it is critica
that the physician, pharmacist, patient and regul ators know what
medi ci ne the patient is actually receiving.

DR. SCHNEI DER expl ai ned that current Al aska | aw does not provide
a clear pathway to the substitution of biosimlar drug products;
therefore, pharmacist wll need to require advanced approval
from the prescriber before substituting an interchangeable
biologic for a brand-nanme biologic, a provision that SB 32 w ||
remove. He detailed that SB 32 will allow Al aska pharmacists
with the ability to dispense safe and |ess expensive biologic
medicines to patients by allowwng the substitution of
i nterchangeable biologic that are prescribed for anything
biologic. He asserted that SB 32 protects patients and ensures
only FDA approved interchangeable biologic products nay be
substituted wi thout prior prescriber consent, this is simlar to
substitution requirenments of generic substitution. He added that
physicians wll retain the authority to wite, "D spense as
witten" which is identical to the authority for generic
substitution.

He pointed out that because biologic products differ from

generics in their conplexity and are not identical, the
| egislation assures that there wll be a clear and tinely
comuni cation between pharmacists and prescribers to ensure
patient records reflect which specific product is being
di spensed to the patient. He said pharmacists will have up to
t hree-business days to relay nedication information that 1is
being dispensed so all providers have an accurate patient

nmedical record. He stated that having an accurate patient
medi cal record allows providers to assess the patient's response
to a particular treatnent.

He set forth that ASBM and various pharmaceutical, pharmacy and
i nsurance conpanies support SB 32 because the legislation
provides a clear substitution process by which pharnacists can
di spense a FDA approved interchangeable biologic without first
seeking approval. He added that the bill also increases access
to lower-cost nedicines for patients. He added that SB 32 is

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 18- February 10, 2017



simlar to legislation that has been passed in 26 states and
Puerto Ri co.

DR. SCHNEI DER summarized that ASBM supports SB 32 because the
bill renoves barriers to Ilowcost nedicines and increases
treatment options while recognizing the need for transparency
and comuni cation anong health-care providers to ensure patient
safety when using the prom sing new biol ogi c nedi ci nes.

2:22:25 PM

MARK GUIMOND, Director of State Legislative Affairs, Arthritis
Foundati on, Washington, D.C, testified in support of SB 32. He
set forth that biologics for the arthritis comunity are
critical. He said biologics have changed in a generation, the
difference for children in particular with juvenile arthritis
that were living their lives in a wheelchair to going out and
pl aying. He stated that the Arthritis Foundation wants to nake
sure biologics are avail able to everybody.

He pointed out that biosimlars as a science offers the
opportunity to have new biologics come to market that are proven
and safe. He revealed that the new drugs conming to nmarket are
i nnovative, |ess expensive and nore available to people. He said
the Arthritis Foundation wants to change lives in the arthritis
community and bi ol ogi cs does that.

He set forth that the Arthritis Foundation supports a post-
substitution notification as specified in the bill from the
pharmacist to the prescriber because the nechanism in the
| egislation will be consistent with federal [|aw.

2:25:53 PM

GARY MCCLELLAND, Patient Advocate, Anchorage, Al aska, testified
in support of SB 32. He revealed that he is a cancer patient. He
set forth that the additional options provided by biological
medicine allows him to receive treatnment in Anchorage rather
than having to travel to the Lower 48. He added that naking
biosimlars available in a short period of tine will be a cost-
cutting neasure for hinself, other patients and the state.

2:28:19 PM

ROBERT THOVS, representing hinmself, Wsilla, Alaska, testified
in support of SB 32. He revealed that he has rheumatoid
arthritis and uses Humra. He revealed that using Humira has
allowed himto enjoy a functional life.

2:32: 27 PM

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -19- February 10, 2017



Cl NDY CASERTA, representing herself, Wasilla, Alaska, testified
in support of SB 32. She disclosed that she is the wife of M.
Thoms and confirmed that Humra has helped him She asserted
that M. Thons and other Alaska residents can benefit from
additional options if the FDA approves nore biosimlars. She

said the passage of SB 32 will allow patients to make inforned
choi ces about other, perhaps cheaper biologics. She added that
patients' doctors and others will be notified within days and

together they can nodify the biologic's effect.

2:35:19 PM

ASHLYN  ANTONELLI , representing herself, Anchorage, Al aska

testified in support of SB 32. She asserted that biol ogical

drugs are necessary and noted that she would not be at the
committee neeting without the use Of biologics. She added that
she supported SB 32 due to the potential cost savings from
bi ol ogi cal drugs as well.

2:42: 02 PM

EMLY NENON, Alaska Governnent Relations D rector, Anmerican
Cancer Society Cancer Action Network, Anchor age, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 32. She set forth that SB 32 is an
opportunity to wupdate state statutes to keep up wth the
advances in nedical science. She asserted that biologic drugs
are providing trenendous promse in the treatnent of cancer. She

reveal ed t hat t here are currently no FDA- appr oved
i nt erchangeabl e biosimlars for cancer treatnent; however, there
are a nunber in the research pipeline and statutes will need to
be updat ed.

She revealed that biologic drugs are sone of the nbst expensive
cancer drugs on the nmarket today. She noted that just as
generics have done for small nolecule drugs, interchangeable
biosimlars have the potential to increase price conpetition
with some of the older biologic drugs and result in |ower cost
burdens for cancer patients.

She sunmarized that there are three-basic principles that are
inportant to the American Cancer Society Cancer Action Network
regarding legislation: consent, notification and record keeping,
and safety and interchangeability.

2:45: 18 PM

DR. BARRY CHRI STENSEN, Co-Chair, Al aska Pharnmaci st Association
Ket chi kan, Al aska, testified that the Alaska Pharnmaci st
Association is neutral on SB 32. He addressed previous testinony
and noted that nost pharnmacies in Alaska are currently

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 20- February 10, 2017



di spensi ng biol ogical products, nostly in the form of insulin
and drugs for rheunatoid arthritis.

DR. CHRI STENSEN announced that the Al aska Pharmaci st Association
is neutral on SB 32, nostly because the association has not had
enough tinme to review the legislation. He noted that the
association has asked for clarification on part of the nam ng
portion of the bill on page 2. He detailed that namng wll
i npact pharmacy software systens for correct |abeling.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if pharmacists in Alaska currently
di spense biosimlars.

DR. CHRI STENSEN replied that biosimlars are new territory, but
will definitely be part of the future. He said he believed that
some biosimlars are being dispensed. He noted that one of the
bi gger biosimlars that have conme on the market is one of the
| ong-acting insulins that insurance conpanies are pronoting for
its | ower costs.

2:48: 04 PM

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if an Al askan pharmacist at this tine
woul d make a substitution for either a biosimlar or a biologic
wi thout consulting the prescriber and getting affirmation from
t he prescri ber.

DR. CHRI STENSEN answered no. He specified that currently all
pharmaci sts should be getting a new prescription for the
bi osi m | ar product.

SENATOR BEG CH asked how consent comrunication would work with
mai | -order conpanies. He inquired if the consent requirenent
woul d essentially prohibit the use of mai | order for
biosim | ars.

DR. CHRI STENSEN replied that he did not see a problem wth
conpliance because information can be sent electronically via
t he i nsurance-si de of things.

2:50: 02 PM

LIS HOUCHEN, Chair, National Association of Chain Drugstores
(NACDS), Anchorage, Alaska, testified that the NACDS is neutra
on SB 32 if notification is changed from three-busi ness days to
five-business days. She set forth that a change to Section 5,
line 28 from a three day to a five-day notification would
provide a larger reporting window in the event that sonething
outside of a pharmacist's control occurs.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -21- February 10, 2017



2:51:52 PM
CHAIR W LSON cl osed public testinony on SB 32.

2:52: 18 PM
CHAIR WLSON held SB 32 in commttee for future consi deration.

2:52: 57 PM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee,
Chair WI1son adjourned the Senate Health and Social Services
Conmittee at 2:52 p.m

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -22- February 10, 2017



